
United Nations 

ECONOl\UC 
AND 

SOCIAL COUNCIL 

Nations Unies 

CONS ElL 
ECONOMIQUE 
ET SOCIAL 

UNRESTRICTED 

E/CN .1/SIL 50 
5 May 1948 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL : FRENCH 

ECONOMIC AND EMPLOYMENT CCMMISSION 

Chair man : 

Member s : 

THIRD SEESION 

Sto/MARY RECORD OF THE FIFTIETH MEETING 

Mr. R. 

*Mr. E. 
*lv"ll'. J . 
*lvlr . V. 

Mr . .J. 
Mr . F. 

*Mr. N. 
Mr . R. 
Mr . J . 

*l'-tr . D. 
Mr . G. 

*Mr . G. 
*Mr . M. 
r·ir. I. 
i\1r . A. 

Lake Succe; r.1s , Ntni York 
Mc:r.d.a.y, 26 AprU 19i-}8 at 11 a .m. 

HllSCN Australia 

d.G SELLIEFS Belginm 
G. 'TORRES Brazil 
f:. . BAKOUNCV Byelorussi an Sovi e t Socialist 

R&public 
DEU'ISCH Canada 
HO China 
SILVERIO Cuba 
BYS'l·RICKY Cz.echoslovakia 
RUEFF France 
KARNARKAB India 
BOE Norway 
LUTOSI.A\-ISIU Poland 
FLEMING United Kingdcm 
LllBIJ.\" Uni ted States of America 
P. MO:ROZOV Union of Soviet Soc ialist Republics 

Represent atives of Sneciali zed Agencies : 

Observe:·: 

.tvlr. A. A. EVANS 
Mr. D. GC:RDON 

Mr. A. G. B. FISCHER 

Mr . WI NDHAN-HHITE 

I nternational Labour Organization 
I nternational Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development 

International Monetary Fund 

I nter im Corr.mi::Js ion of the 
International Trade Organization 

Consul t ar. t s f rom Non ·-Go v&rnmen tal Orgar.i zations : 

Miss L. SPIEGEL 
Miss T. SENDF.B 
Mr . J . BOTTON 

*Alternai es for Third Session 

Horld Federation of Trade Unions 
.American Federation of Labor 
International Feder at i on of 
Christian Trade Unions 

NOTE : Any corrections of this record s hould be submitted i n 
lvrHing in either of t he work ing l anguages (English or French) , and l·Ti thin 
h1enty-four hours, to Mr . E. Delavenay , Director, Official :Records Division, 
Rocm CC-119, Lake Success . Corr ec t ions should be acccmpanied by or 
incor porated in a letter, on headed notepaper: bearing the appropriate 
symbol number and encl osed i n an envelope marked "Urgent" . Correctjans 
can be dealt l li th more speedily by the services concerned if delegations 
will be good enough also to incor porate them in a mimeogrcph~d copy of 
the record. 



E/CN.l/SB.50 
Page 2 

Secretariat: 

Mr. WEINTRAUB Secretary of the Commission 

DISCUSSION OF ITEM 8 OF THE !I.GENDA: REPORT OF THE SUB-COMMISSION ON 
EMPLOYMENT AND ECCNC~UC STABILITY (document E/CN,l/55) 

At the CRAI:&\1.Al'; •s request Mr. 'WEiliTRAUB (Secretariat) enumerated 

the following documents bearing upon Item 8 of the Agenda: 

D .. ,cuments and studies mentioned. in paragraph YII.5 of 

dccumen- E,'CN .1/54 and the two r eports prepared by t he ]'cod 

and 1\gric ,,_lture Organization and the International Emergency 

Food Conmi~tee respectively (document E/CN.l/58; he referred 

to the passage on page 3 of the latter r eport, regarding the 

food ei tuati.::n and alsc mentioned t he study prepared. -oy the 

Intarnntional Monetary Fund on the problem of exchange rates 

(document E/CN.l/60), 

1~. Lu~OSLAWSKI (foland) suggested that the Commission should 

begirl discussion on the subetance of the rt:~port f orthw:!.th, avoiding the 

procedure followed during c<•nsideration of the Report of the Sub-Com-

mission on Economic DevelopD!ent. 

Mr . RUEFF (France: found the report of the Sub-Commission on 

~ployment and Economic StaMlity very intereeting as a whole, ttcugh 

some of its conclusions were de·i>atable. 

However, he did not th:.nk that the report contained any positive 

or effective recommendati o-.B t hat could be submitted to the Economic 

and Bocial Council under tho te:!:'Ills of r efer ence it had given the Com-

miss:ton. 

/Mr. BAKOUNOV 



E/CN .l/SR.50 
Page 3 

Mr . BAKOUNOV (Byel orueei an Soviet Socialist Republic) r ecognized 

that t he problem of inflation , to whi ch t he Sub-Commi ssi on had devoted t he 

groater part of i ts work, called for moat exhaust i ve study . But as the 

French r epresentative had sai d, the 1~port contained oo concr ete r ecom-

mendati ons that could be applied in order t o combat inflation . Moreover, 

~hat opinion was confirmed by Professor Frisch, whose views on the matter 

wer e summarized i n Annex 1 . The r eport also contained many cootr adic-

tiona . For example , it stat ed at the beginni ng that one of the means 

of combatting inflation was to limit demand; a strange stat ement, to say 

the l east, since any redu~tion i n demand .inevitably l ed t o an economic 

cris i s . Later , in the same part of t he repor t , ther e wer e entir ely op-

posite asserti ons . Thus the causes of infla t i on and the r emedi es to 

be applied wer e far f r om clearl y presented . Neverthel ess , the r eport 

contained sever al accurate obser vati ons . In particular, the two last 

sentences of paragr aph 6 on page 22 , r egarding the causes of inflati on , 

and the s tatement that extreme inflati on l ower ed r eal wages and enriched 

speculat or s , wer e correct in substance . He was sorry that such truths 

had not been taken as n starting point and amplified in a scienti f i c and 

objective manner. 

Speaking of the pr oblem in general he pointed out that inflation 

was a very old phenomenon. Though much work had been done, no accurate , 

sci entific under standing of it bad yet been ach i eved , ae most economists 

r ofused t o study t he subject obj ectively . 

Scma attributed inflation t o increased wages. But a rise in wages , 
a 

whtch alwayEI l aased behind the rise in prices , was/consequence , not a 

cause· of inflation . Other s sought to blame the expenditure of private 

income accumulated during the war, wher eas such excessive spending was 

caused by rising prices . According to such economist s, the working 

masses wer e thus r esponsible for infla t i on . It was impossible to agr ee 

with such an assertion . 
/ The 



E/CN.l/ J R. 50 
Page 4 

The true causes of :.nf.lation should be sout3ht e lsewher e . The 

p r incipal cause wa s t he policy of capitalist monopolies which tried 

to increasetheir income hy r aising prices. Moreover, inflation took 

on different characteris·;ics i n differ ent countrie s . In colonie.l and 

somi -colon i a l countries, in which the f eudal system still survived, it 

wa s of a chronic nature, bringing suffering , epidemics and high mortality . 

Other countries, such as Greece and Italy, wor e r ece:.ving ve ry special 

attention from the monopolistic countries . In studying the pr obl em of 

inflation, t her efor e , thE• characteristics and condi t i ona peculiar to 

each country could not bo disregarded. 

Tbe f ollowi ng , in h t s view, wer e the.'main real cause s of i nfla tion: 

First: Har psychosis , which per sisted in spite of the 

Ass embly r esolutione;, and the armaments r ace which in se veral 

parts of t he world, such as Greece end Indonesia, wen t a s f ar a.s 

direct military interventi on . The armaments race wa s a crushing 

burden on tho econoD1ies of a ll count.ries , and resulted in un -

bear able living cond.iti ons for t he worki ng mas ses ; secondly: the 

tendency of certain coun t ries , which had not suffer ed from the \•Ta r, 

to take advantage of their privil eged position to embark on a 

policy of unbri d l ed economic expansion; thirdly: specu.lfl.tion and 

t he black ma rket, pErticul a rly in food- stuft's , wh ich onl y a.ggrnvo.t ed 

the economic positicn of the masses. 

He t hen quoted figures on industria l r ecovery since the war in 

various countries, which ho regarded as having no r el ation to inflation . 

Ther e had been inflt>.tion before the ,\.mr, which had mer e ly e.ggr a vated it . 

If' i nflv.tion was to be fcucht effectively, the cause of the 3Vi l must 

be sought in the right p.1e.ce . 

Mr . BOE (Norwa ;y) r ecognized the complexity of the :problem 

r nised by the r eport of the Sub- Commission on Employment and Economic 

/Stabili ty 



E/CN. l / SR. 50 
Page 5 

Stabilit y . Besides the r epor t he bud s t udi ed the summary r ecor ds of the 

meetings that had l .:ld t o ita adoption. The r ecor da shc,.·r-d rather · tterked 

diff er ences of opinion, which par t ly explained t he nature of t he f i nal 

r eport . The Sub-Commiss i on ' s r epor t s eemed to r epresent a compromi se 

bet ween different points of vi ew. 

While admitt ing tha t the repor t gave a good gener al i dea of t he prob-

l em t o be sol ved, he t hought i t t ended to dwell too much on the purely 

monet ary side of the question . Such monet ary aspects should be consider ed 

l ess as causes than as· symptoms of en inf l a t ionar y situation the t had 

deep- seated causes . Mor eover, some of t he pr oposed measur es t o cur t ail 

demand by r educing the var i ous types of expendit ure might, if not appl i ed 

with the gr eatest caut i on, bring about a cr isi s caused by an increase in 

unemployment and i nsuffic i ent utilizat ion of the means of pr oduction . An 

anti - i nflati onar y policy des i gned to reduce t he volume of demand must 

only be applied with cons iderable reser vations . 

Furt hermor e , he compl et ely di sagr eed wi t h cer tain specific points 

i n t he r epor t . The Sub-Commissi on ' s euggest icLS for i ncreasing r a t es of 

i nter est (Part V, C par agraph 8, page 28; wer e of dubious value . If 

infl ationary pressur e took on dangerous propor t i ons , onl y a very high 

r at e of interest could be of any use . Such an increase , moreover , would 

not only hi nder investment , but since t he r at e of i nter est is an important 

f actor i n coat s , i t would cause a rise in cos t prices and thus have an 

effect opposite t o that intended . Mor eover, the Sub -Commi ssi on 1s r epor t 

attached t oo much i mportance to bal anced budgeting (Part V.C, paragr aph 14 , 

page 31) , without making suffici ent r eser vations . I f ~ubl i c expendi -

ture f ormed onl y a small propor t i on of nat i onal i ncome , t he policy of 

bal anced budget ing would only play an ins i gnif icant p~rt in .contr olli ng 

i nfl at i on . 

/ The Sub -Commissi on ' s 



E/CN.l/SR ,50 
Page 6 

The Sub-Ccmmi seion •e. Report considered mainly the social r ole th~t 

could be played by eubsic.i es . He himself, ccnoider ed that a policy of 

subsidies could play an jmportant ond concret e part in he: t :ng inflation . 

Subsidies make i t possible t o ensure the stability and r el ative equili-

brium of r eal i ncomes . 'l"heir suppression , on the other hand, could l ead 

t o a dissension between 1.he various economic groupe r e3ard.tng the dietri-

button of the national ircome between them. The inflationary consequences 

of such a situation woul d. be mor e serious than those of the unbalanced bud -

getins to which the granting of such subsi di es might l ead . 

He also thought that the r eport shoul.d give a more detailed account 

of t he economic and eoci E~ aims on which the proposed ~onetary policy 

should be baaed, o.nd of t.ow the measures contemplat ed were t o be applied . 

Finally, he f ound it diffi cult to give hie f~ approval to the Sub-

Commission's r eport in i ts present f orm . 

Mr. FLEMING (Urited Kingdcm) regretted. that the Sub-Commission 

on Employment and Economi c Stability had devot ed almost the whole of 

ita r eport to the problen of inflation. Wi thout wi shi ng to under-

estimat e the great importance of that problem, he pointed out that , 

gener ally speaki ng, infloti cn was decreas i ng i n moat countries, thanks 

t o the meeeuree that had been taken. In countr i es wher e inflation had 

not been controlled, it -aa not for lack of knowledge of the measures t o 

be applied, but f or l ack of the necessary cournge t o put them into effect. 

The Sub-Commission could have dwelt on the probl em of a deflationary 

crisis or that of general unemployment, whi ch might arise i n the near 

future . 

He wished t o make acme co~nte on the substance of the report . The 

most impor t ant ono was that the r epor t did not dif f er entiate cl early 

between the two processes of i nflation, namel y , the so-called i nflat ionary 

"gap" on the cne bond, and the "wage-price epira.t' on the oth0r . 

/The 



E/CN . 1/SR. 50 
j?r.uv 7 

The f irst ce>.tet;ory of i nflc..t ion , Ct"'.used by I' domnnd for t;oods or 

services whi ch exceeded r:.vdl:;bl e supplie s r.t e. s table price l e vel, 

might be c n.usod oithor by a shortaGe of supply or by excessivo dom:;nd . 

Rocn llinu thct the Norwegirm r cpre s entati ve had complc.inod tha.t tho 

r eport de voted too much c.ttention to the monetr.r y fn ctors of tho prob-

lom, he observed thr.t the r e wa.s t;ood r ea.aon for str essing them, c.s 

they woro the cc.siost to work on. Gove:rnm<mts coul d en.si ly influence 

the monc kry fr.ctors, tha t wr.s to BC'.y demand , wherona there was li ttlo 

they coul d do , for e xcmplo , wi th regr,rd to the shortage of food products . 

The s econd typ~ of inflc.tion r esulted from t h e .. desire to matntc.,in 

:i.'cr l vl:~uos r.t ' · hiGher .level thc.t t ho country's economy permitted. In 

th<'.t respect, he d i d not ngr ee with the Byelorussio.n r epresonto.ti ve 's 

r ernr rks. I t wr.s true t hc.t w2gea were now lo,~er than before the wr.r, 

but if tho productivity of lc.bour we r e reduced, real wc.g os wore r.lso 

r educed, c:nd r ny e ffort to mc~intc.in them o.t thei r normal leve l by 

incre<'.scs in nominr.l •n:~ges brought price rises, e tc. Such a. situntion ... .. 

:;ould not be remedied until productivity rogc.ined its normr.l l e ve l. 

Those two inflf'.tion<'.ry processes, r olo.tod though distinct, mi ;;ht 

require di ffe r ent r emedie s . 

Exnmininu tho methods proposed in thnt part of tho report which 

der.lt with nc.tionc.l cspccts, he t houcht t ha t the Sub- Commission hnd 

s ";ruck r.-.n exce llent br l o.nco between the t •1o ; the f irst method wns to 

trko mo<'.suros to r oduco dom~nd (such us those epplied by tho United 

Kint,;dorn, in pc.rticulr r, rnd other countrius vlith r. plnnnod economy) , 

tho second wr- s to .~.pply monGt :-- r y rmd fin~ncie. l moc.sur os. He ompho.sizod 

t ho d~~nber of c.ppl yinG the first me thod cxc l usi ve.ly, i n tho C "'.S C of 

countrie s thc.t l rtck0d t:> s olid i'.dministrr.ti vo f r nmev10rk . 

On tho other h::-,nd, he •1r.s somewhr.t di s ::.ppoin t od in tho p<'.rt of 

tho r eport cLovoted to intornc.tionu l r.spocts . Whi l c f'.d vice on n:'..tionr.l 

/progri'l.llilles 



E/CN .l/SR.50 
Page 8 

progr ammes had ita value , t be essent ial functi on of the United Nations 

in tb.o oconomic fi eld, wns to promote ple..nned action on o.n internc.tiono.l 

scal e either through its organs or by dirAct co- oper ation, 

In .spite of those f ew cbjections, be thought tha t the Sub-Commission ' s 

report was of great scientific value o.nd that the Commission should 

decide to publish it without even waiting for tho Economic o.nd Social 

Council ' s next session . 

Mr. de SELLIERS (B3l gium) said tbnt having read the r eport 

with inter est, he f elt that this excellent study of such an important 

subject would be mor e suited to a treatise on political economy than to 

the r eport by a Sub- Commissi)n ins tructed to study problems of employment 

and economic stabi lity. 

Noting that the r eport was confined to the problem of inflation, 

be said that although a study of the causes and r emedies might be of 

great inter est, it was of little help to the countries suffering from 

that evil . For eucb country had ita own economic structure and its own 

causes of inflation . 

The Sub-Commissi on coul·i have devot ed a gr eat part of ita work to 

other provisions of its t erm3 of r ef erence; f or i ns t ance, t he st udy of 

measures to check a possible deflation or extensive unemployment . During 

its second session, the Econ)mic and Employment Commission had touched 

upon tha t question, which dii not come wit hin t he scope of any of the 

specialized agencies . In thit connection the r eport did not take auf-

fici ent account of tho exist :mce of the International Monetary .l!'und, 

an organization that was ser ved by many economist s, and one of whose 

activities was the close o.nd cons t ant s t udy of the problem of i nflation 

in Memb~r States . The study of infla t ion was, t herefore , largely a 

function of the Fund, which was in a position to give its members specif i c 

advi ce on the control of inflationary tendenci es i n their countries . 

/The r eport 



E/CN.l/SR.50 
Page 9 

The r eport itself, w&s excellent f r om a sci entific point of view. 

He would limit hia co~ents on detail to a f ew pointe . 

The Korwegi an and United Kingdom re~resentatives bad raised the quae-

· tioe of increasing r ates of inter est . He agreed that such a measure was 

not in itself an adequate weapon to control a typical i nflati on, but 

if used i n conjunction with the other methods, it could be of gr eat 

help i n r educing inflati onary pressures. In Bel gium, wher e r ates of 

interest had been raised consi der ably, the Government bad had every reason 

tor sati sfaction a t having taken such a measure . 

He r ecognized the necessity for balanced budgeting whe; the general 

budget was concerned; extraordinary budget or invsstment expenditure cou.ld. 

be covered by l oans but not by advances f r om the issuing bank. Part v,c, 

paragraph 27 of the report stated that the cutting of pur chasing power 

by withdr awal of the notes in circulation bad. d.oubtful r esults and did 

not r each equally all social classes; hi s country bad carried out sue~ 

em ~per~tion successfully. The notes bad been withdrawn, but bad been 

grc.dually :returned to -::irculation; there bad thus ·been, neither social 

injustice nor dir ect le1y on the holder s of notes . 

If the Commission -::oneidered the re~ort point by point , he would 

reserve the right to propose certain changes of detail . 

~~. HO (China) pointed out that t he r epor t under consideration 

was the first t o oe submitted oy the Sub-Commission on Employment end 

Economic Sta·oili ty . He r egarded 1 t an a c.a1.emic document of great scientific 

value . He had only two generol colllDente to rua.ke . 

First, he woUld have liked the r eport to lay mor e stress on the 

disastrous effects that would enBue f r om a deflation . The Sub- Colll!Dieston 

only mentioned the matter once and, in his opinion, too briefly . 

On the other hand, be was glad that at the end, the report mentioned 

steps taken to prepar e documents on more specific subjects and special 

/studies 



E/CN.l/SR.50 
Page 10 

studies. Specific studies and plans could play an important part in the 

Sub-Commission's future wol~k, and he hoped that the Economic and Employ-

ment Commission too, would ntta~h more importance to such studies in the 

future. 

The CBAIBMAN sai(l that the Co!IIDlission would continue examine-

tion of the Sub-Commission ·s report nt its next meeting. 

· EU."'CTION OF A MEMBER OF TUE SUB -COMMISSION ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
(documents E/CN.l/51 and E/CN.l/W29) 

The CHAIRMAN rect~ed that there were two candidat~s to fill 

th~ ,-ncancy in the membership of the Sub-Comission on Economic Development 

that had been left by the ::-esignation of Mr. V. Urquidi: Mr. M. Bravo

Jimenez (Mexico) proposed -by l-1r. Torres {Brazil) and Mr. J. Jussiant {Belgium) 

proposed by Mr. Fleming (United Kingdom). 

In answer to a queatic)n by Mr. de Selliera {Belgium), the Che.irman 

explained that if the cand Ldate elected were not available, the Cc:mDissico 

would be notified by the s.~cretnriat before the end of its session, and 

would bold a new election. 

ht the CBAIRMAN'3 request Mr. S.LVERIO (Cuba) and Mr. BOE (Norway) 
acted as scrutineers. 

A secret ballot was taken. Fifteen valid votes "Were cast "With 
the follu'WiOB result: 

Mr. M. Bravo-Jim3nez ••••.•••••••••••.•••.•••••. 9 votes 

Mr. J. Juaoiant •••.•••.•••.•.••.••.•........... 6 votes 

Mr. M. Bravo-J±m3nez (Mexico) 'WaB elected member of the Sub
Commission on Economic Dev3lopment. 

Mr. WEINTBAUB (S3cretnry) informed the Commission that he would 

take the appropriate steps in accordance with the terms of reference of t~e 

Sub-Commission on Economic Development. 

The meetins rose at 12:55 p.m. 




